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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

          3  much, everybody, for joining us down here on a

          4  beautiful sunny day.  Happy Valentine's Day.  Good

          5  afternoon, ladies and gentlemen.  Welcome to this

          6  hearing of the Health Committee on the City's

          7  response to the growing diabetes epidemic.

          8                 As Chair of the Committee, I am

          9  deeply troubled by the extent of the diabetes

         10  problem.  According to the American Diabetes

         11  Association, this epidemic is going to become so

         12  serious that it could actually reduce the average

         13  American life expectancy. That is astounding.  It is

         14  particularly upsetting because this prediction is

         15  for the entire country and the situation is worse in

         16  New York City.  Here the percentage of diabetes is

         17  more than five percent higher than in the rest of

         18  the nation and diabetes is being diagnosed in the

         19  City at twice the national rate.  The data is

         20  alarming.  The latest numbers from the Department of

         21  Health and Mental Hygiene show that approximately

         22  700,000 people in New York City currently have

         23  diabetes.  That is one out of every eight or 12.5

         24  percent of New Yorkers.  What's more, that does not

         25  include the estimated 23 percent of New Yorkers who
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          2  have pre-diabetes.

          3                 Diabetes has hit certain communities

          4  harder than others.  Among ethnic groups, Asians in

          5  New York have extraordinary high rates of diabetes.

          6  Sixteen percent of Asians in New York have diabetes

          7  and another 32 percent have pre-diabetes.  Diabetes

          8  also disproportionately affects lower income people.

          9  The epidemic is doing considerable damage in lower

         10  income communities such as the South Bronx, where 14

         11  percent of the people have been diagnosed with the

         12  disease.  Of the 700,000 New Yorkers estimated to be

         13  suffering from diabetes, a possible 207,000 may not

         14  even know it. This means that they cannot get

         15  treatment or take steps necessary to manage their

         16  disease.

         17                 Without effective management,

         18  diabetes can cause serious and life-threatening

         19  complications, such as heart disease, stroke, high

         20  blood pressure, blindness, nervous system problems,

         21  kidney disease and dental disease.

         22                 Forty-eight percent of New York

         23  diabetics who have already been diagnosed are

         24  considered poor, or very poor at controlling their

         25  illness.  This is particularly tragic because unlike
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          2  many conditions, diabetes is an illness that can be

          3  properly managed.  Studies have been shown that

          4  changes in diet and lifestyle can prevent or delay

          5  the onset of Type II diabetes in high-risk

          6  individuals.

          7                 Since diabetes can be managed and in

          8  some cases prevented, it is critical that New York

          9  City focus on the epidemic. Today the Committee is

         10  interested in hearing about the City's efforts to

         11  prevent the spread of diabetes and improving care

         12  for those diagnosed.

         13                 Before we begin with the testimony, I

         14  want to introduce my colleagues who are here today.

         15  We have Council Member John Liu from Queens, and we

         16  have Council Member Inez Dickens from Harlem and

         17  Manhattan, and we have other members that will be

         18  joining us shortly but they're stuck in a little bit

         19  of traffic, as we can see why outside.  Just

         20  entered, we have Council Member Maria Baez, as well.

         21                 First to testify today will be

         22  Assistant Commissioner Dr. Lynn Silver from the

         23  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene who has a

         24  wealth of knowledge and information and we will be

         25  picking your brain on what's going on.  Do you have
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          2  anybody who will be sitting with you today, or not?

          3  Come on over, don't be shy, you came all this way,

          4  come on, come on.  So the floor is yours.  Is the

          5  mike on?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  Okay,

          7  good afternoon, Chairman Rivera, Members of the

          8  Health Committee.  Happy Valentine's Day.  I am Dr.

          9  Lynn Silver.  I am Assistant Commissioner for the

         10  Bureau of Chronic Disease Prevention and Control at

         11  the Department of Health and Hygiene.  With me is

         12  Dr. Shadi Chamany who is the Director of the

         13  Diabetes Prevention and Control Program.  On behalf

         14  of Commissioner Frieden, I would like to thank you

         15  for the opportunity to discuss the diabetes epidemic

         16  in New York City and Nationally which we know has

         17  been a concern of yours.

         18                 This afternoon I will describe the

         19  state of the epidemic in New York City and identify

         20  parts of the City where we know diabetes prevalence

         21  to be the highest.  I will then turn to the

         22  initiatives of the Department of Health and Mental

         23  Hygiene that they are undertaking to help to prevent

         24  diabetes to from occurring in the first place as

         25  well as our activities to help control diabetes and
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          2  improve its outcome.

          3                 Diabetes and obesity are twin

          4  epidemics.  The epidemic of obesity is driving the

          5  epidemic of diabetes.  I'm just going to take one

          6  minute to show some slides that document the

          7  epidemic of obesity in the United States, prepared

          8  by the CDC, which shows how it increased faster than

          9  any of us every imagined possible.

         10                 These are maps of the United States

         11  based on a study called the Behavioral Risk Factors

         12  survey that's performed annually in all states now,

         13  and I'm going to start with the series of 1985, and

         14  you see, there was not data from all states at that

         15  time, but you see that the darker blue color means

         16  that 10 to 14 percent of the population was obese or

         17  had a body mass index over 30.  That's about 30

         18  pounds overweight for a five- foot- four- woman.  So

         19  this was 1985.  This was 1986 and you see grey

         20  kicking in and more data.  By 1987 almost half the

         21  country was this blue color.  In 1988 California and

         22  some of south west kicked in to 10 to 14 percent,

         23  1989 the northwestern states, 1990 Texas and a bunch

         24  more states are 10 to 14 percent obese.  1991 we get

         25  a new color.  This brighter blue is 15 to 19 percent
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          2  of the states population was obese.  In 1992, we see

          3  almost the whole nation solidly in the earlier color

          4  and the spread of the 15 to 19 percent group.  1993,

          5  the east coast starts going brighter blue.  1994

          6  Texas goes again. 1995 about half the Country is

          7  about 15 to 19 percent obese.  1996, almost the

          8  greater part of the Country.  1997 we have a new

          9  color in part of the south and also some of the

         10  great lakes area, greater than 20 percent of those

         11  states populations are obese. 1998 the light green

         12  starts spreading.  1999, suddenly almost half the

         13  Country, the states populations are greater than 20

         14  percent obese. 2000, even more solidly so.  2001, we

         15  have a new color.  Greater than 25 percent of the

         16  states population is obese.  2002 we see the greater

         17  part of the Counter, greater than 20 percent and the

         18  new color is spreading.  2003 again greater than 25

         19  percent, continues to spread.  2004 we really see

         20  the spread of greater than 25 percent obesity,

         21  especially in the deep south in Texas.  The rest of

         22  the Country solidly above 20 percent.  2005 we now

         23  have a new color, the darker brown, with 30 percent

         24  of the states population obese.  As this could not

         25  fail to occur, this incredible change in the body
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          2  habitus of our citizens over such a short period of

          3  time has been driving the epidemic of obesity.  It's

          4  reflection here in New York City is this curve where

          5  over the space of a mere decade the frequency of

          6  diabetes went from 3.7 percent, this is self

          7  reported of our adult population, to 9.2 percent of

          8  our adult population.  So it's this very, very rapid

          9  change in obesity, occurring nationally and in our

         10  City and the diabetes epidemic trailing in it's wake

         11  and very, very closely related.  So that's sort of

         12  key background piece I just wanted to go over with

         13  you.

         14                 Here in New York, coming back to our

         15  City, more than one half or 55 percent of adult New

         16  Yorkers are now overweight or obese.  At the same

         17  time, diabetes prevalence in New York City, as I

         18  mentioned, has doubled over the past ten years with

         19  nearly three quarter of a million adults suffering

         20  from diabetes.  That's one in eight adults.

         21  Unfortunately, almost 200,000 who have diabetes do

         22  not yet know it.  Furthermore, one quarter of New

         23  York City adults have something called pre- diabetes

         24  and are at high risk for developing full blown

         25  diabetes.  Pre- diabetes is defined as having a
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          2  fasting blood sugar of 100 to 125 micrograms per

          3  deciliter. Whereas a person who has over 126 fasting

          4  blood sugar is considered to have diabetes.

          5                 What is also of most concern is that

          6  over 100,000 New Yorkers who have diabetes, have

          7  diabetes that is very seriously out of control which

          8  puts them at significant risk for the severe

          9  complications of heart disease, stroke, kidney

         10  failure, blindness or amputations that we are seeing

         11  so much in our communities.

         12                 As you just saw, the trends are

         13  hitting in the wrong direction.  One estimate

         14  suggest that unless we change this present

         15  trajectory of the diabetes epidemic and the obesity

         16  epidemic, one third of young people born in 2000

         17  will develop diabetes as adults. For Latinas this

         18  estimate is much higher, it's 50 percent.  As a

         19  pediatrician who began her internship at Babies

         20  Hospital in 1984, I can personally attest to the

         21  extraordinary changes in the size and the shape of

         22  our children over the last two decades.

         23                 Like many chronic diseases, diabetes

         24  is not evenly spread across our population.  In New

         25  York City, adult diabetes prevalence is highest in
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          2  our low- income neighborhoods such as the South

          3  Bronx, East Harlem and Central Brooklyn.  These

          4  geographic areas exhibit the highest rates of

          5  obesity, diabetes and diabetes hospitalizations when

          6  compared to the City as a whole.

          7                 In 2003, the Department responded to

          8  these documented disparities by establishing our

          9  District Public Health Offices in each of these

         10  areas to concentrate efforts where they're needed

         11  most.  As a result, many of our chronic disease

         12  programs, including those addressing diabetes are

         13  focused on these DPHO areas.

         14                 The Department and the New York City

         15  Board of Health have undertaken a wide range of

         16  efforts in recent years to prevent and to control

         17  diabetes.  These initiatives can be divided into two

         18  groups.  The first group is the prevention of

         19  diabetes which is primarily through promoting

         20  physical activity and healthy eating and the second

         21  group is composed of interventions that aim to

         22  control diabetes by assuring the best possible

         23  outcomes for outcomes for people living with

         24  diabetes.

         25                 Let me first begin by discussing our
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          2  efforts to prevent diabetes.  Lifestyle

          3  modifications, including being physically active,

          4  eating a heart- healthy diet and maintaining a

          5  healthy weight are essential for preventing most

          6  chronic diseases, including diabetes.  We know that

          7  even modest changes have a major impact.  Thirty

          8  minutes a day of physical activity, a ten to fifteen

          9  pound weight loss, and heart- healthy food choices

         10  can help keep people with pre- diabetes from

         11  progressing to diabetes.  In the landmark Diabetes

         12  Prevention Program, researchers found that these

         13  basic changes worked better than drug treatment in

         14  preventing diabetes in subjects with pre- diabetes.

         15  This was the diabetes prevention program in which

         16  there was a 58 percent reduction in cases of

         17  diabetes in people with pre- diabetes who

         18  participated in a relatively simple program of

         19  support around physical activity and nutrition.

         20  Even those individuals who increased their physical

         21  activity but didn't lose weight greatly decreased

         22  their risk of progressing to diabetes.  We know from

         23  other studies that increasing physical activity,

         24  again even without weight loss, also decreases risk

         25  of colon cancer, high blood pressure, depression,
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          2  and heart disease.

          3                 Preventing obesity is a race against

          4  time and we must start early because obesity starts

          5  early.  Nearly half of our New York City elementary

          6  school children, 43 percent, and our Head Start

          7  Children, 42 percent in New York City are overweight

          8  or obese.  Obesity has reached significant levels in

          9  our two year olds and it's not baby fat.

         10                 The Sports, Play and Active

         11  Recreation for Kids trains daycare, pre-

         12  kindergarten staff to incorporate physical activity

         13  into regular education and to get kids moving.

         14  SPARK is designed to provide high energy,

         15  academically integrated and enjoyable physical

         16  activities and has been proven to improve the

         17  quality of physical activity for children.  Thanks

         18  in part to support from the City Council.  Two

         19  thousand staff from 500 sites have been trained in

         20  SPARK.  This year our target is to reach one half of

         21  all Head Start and daycare centers and we're on

         22  track to meet this goal with your generous

         23  assistance.  We also trained 50 percent of public

         24  school pre- kindergarten staff Citywide and we hope

         25  to reach 65 percent of all public school pre- k
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          2  sites this fiscal year.  Ultimately our goal is to

          3  reach every Head Start program, every daycare

          4  center, all pre- k and kindergarten levels Citywide

          5  with this program.

          6                 While SPARK focuses on young

          7  children, Department also offers activities for

          8  adults and older children through a program called

          9  Shape Up New York.  Offered in partnership with the

         10  New York City Department of Parks and Recreations,

         11  this initiative is a free family fitness program

         12  offered at 18 recreation centers, community centers,

         13  and housing sites around the City.  In 2006 we had

         14  40,000 visits to the Shape Up New York program.  In

         15  addition, the gestational diabetes initiative

         16  provides education and resources for women who

         17  develop diabetes during pregnancy, a condition known

         18  as gestational diabetes.  Women with gestational,

         19  and we have about 400 new cases every month in the

         20  City are much more likely to develop diabetes later

         21  in life and their children are also more susceptible

         22  to obesity and to diabetes.

         23            While individual behavior changes are

         24  important for addressing the epidemic, larger policy

         25  efforts are also needed to improve the environmental
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          2  context in which these changes occur.  In particular

          3  with regards to food choices, our report Eating In,

          4  Eating Out, Eating Well, Access to Healthy Food in

          5  North and Central Brooklyn concluded that it is

          6  often difficult to find healthy food in North and

          7  Central Brooklyn and raises the possibility that

          8  this is true in other neighborhoods where obesity

          9  and diabetes are particularly problematic.

         10                 In an effort to address this problem

         11  last a month the Mayor convened a Food Policy

         12  Taskforce and is working to improve access to

         13  healthy foods in New York city as one of its primary

         14  goals.  As a member of this taskforce, DOHMH is

         15  working with the Mayor's Office, the City Council,

         16  and other City agencies to create innovative

         17  interagency initiatives to improve access to healthy

         18  foods in low- income neighborhoods.

         19                 For example, we know that corner

         20  stores are an important place for people to purchase

         21  food.  Unfortunately in poor neighborhoods these

         22  stores are less likely to stock health options than

         23  a supermarket or large grocery store.  To address

         24  this problem DOHMH began the Healthy Bodega

         25  Initiative to work with bodega's to bring low fat
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          2  milk, fresh fruits and vegetables and other healthy

          3  foods into the community setting.

          4                 We have also worked to modify rules

          5  and regulations to make healthy choices easier to

          6  make.  In April of 2006 the New York City Board of

          7  Health adopted new nutrition and physical activity

          8  requirements for all daycare facilities in New York

          9  City. These went into effect this month.  More

         10  recently, the Board of Health adopted new labeling

         11  requirements to make calorie information available

         12  for standardized menu items in certain New York City

         13  restaurants.  As a result, consumers will have more

         14  information about the foods they are purchasing and

         15  can make healthier and more informed decisions.

         16                 For people who already have diabetes,

         17  lifestyle modifications and careful clinical

         18  management are the keys to avoiding complications of

         19  diabetes.  Four feasible steps, we call them the

         20  ABC's, can dramatically reduce complications from

         21  diabetes, these include controlling blood sugar,

         22  that's the A of A1C, B for blood pressure, C for

         23  cholesterol and S for smoking cessation.  The A1C is

         24  a blood test that measures average blood sugar

         25  levels over three months.  For every one point drop
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          2  in this A1C test, there is a 35 percent reduction in

          3  the risk of eye, kidney or foot problems that plague

          4  people with diabetes. Controlling all the ABC's

          5  together can reduce heart disease, the leading cause

          6  of death for people with diabetes with up to 50

          7  percent.  But despite these recent advances there's

          8  room for a great deal of improvement in the clinical

          9  management of diabetes. Nearly 20 percent of people

         10  living with diabetes, that's more than 100,000

         11  people have poorly controlled blood sugars that put

         12  them at risk for serious complications such as heart

         13  attacks, stroke, or kidney failure, blindness, or

         14  amputations.  In an effort to better understand

         15  these patterns, the Department of Health established

         16  the nations first population based A1C registry in

         17  January of 2006, to help people with diabetes and

         18  their healthcare providers better manage their

         19  disease.  Laboratories with electronic reporting now

         20  provide the results of all A1C blood tests to the

         21  Department.  Over the past 12 months we have

         22  collaborated with 38 clinical laboratories to

         23  implement the confidential electronic reporting

         24  system.

         25                 The A1C registry will help us to map
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          2  diabetes and its management so that we can focus

          3  resources and interventions where they are most

          4  needed.  Patients and providers can use this

          5  information to monitor and improve diabetes

          6  treatment. Additionally resources for providers and

          7  patients such as free medications, glucose strips,

          8  home blood pressure monitoring cuffs, lifestyle, and

          9  self- management education programs and educational

         10  materials are an integral part of this program.  The

         11  department is using information from the A1C

         12  registry to develop tailored provider and patient

         13  education materials for distribution in medical

         14  practices across the City.  The program will be

         15  piloted in the South Bronx, a community with one of

         16  the highest rates of diabetes in the City in the

         17  Spring and Summer of this year.

         18                 Finally, the Diabetes Quality

         19  Improvement Collaborative and what we call the

         20  Preventive Services Advisor Program works with

         21  practices and hospitals in the City's highest risk

         22  neighborhoods to improve care and health outcomes

         23  with people with diabetes.  This quality improvement

         24  work is also being reinforced by our Primary Care

         25  Information project which works to improve health
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          2  outcomes through expanded use of electronic health

          3  records in primary care practices that serve low-

          4  income at risk New Yorkers in which will help

          5  patients get consistent high quality

          6  care.

          7                 In summary, we are facing a serious

          8  diabetes epidemic that is moving rapidly in the

          9  wrong direction.  Today diabetes most affects our

         10  Black, Latino, Asian and low- income communities and

         11  it further exacerbates the health disparities that

         12  already exist.  In partnership with the City Council

         13  and other community partners, DOHMH has begun

         14  several programs that will make it easier for people

         15  to make healthy choices about physical activity and

         16  what foods they eat and thereby reduce their risk

         17  for diabetes.  For people who have already developed

         18  diabetes, healthy eating and physical activity are

         19  just as important and we have initiated innovative

         20  programs to help doctors and patients improve care.

         21  Let me just add however, that while we are doing

         22  very solid and innovative work, the scale of

         23  available public and private programs and resources

         24  is still insufficient in the face of the needs

         25  created by this tremendous epidemic.
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          2                 Thank you again for the opportunity

          3  to testify.  We look forward to a continued

          4  partnership with the City Council on many of the

          5  initiatives described today and are happy to answer

          6  your questions at this time.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

          8  much.  We've been joined by Council Members Kendall

          9  Stewart, Council Member Maria del Carmen Arroyo, and

         10  Council Member Helen Sears, and Council Member Al

         11  Vann was here momentarily as well.  I just want to

         12  say that the Department of Health had done a

         13  phenomenal job over the past couple of years in

         14  terms of the programmatic funding and also in the

         15  outreach that you have done.  So we just want to

         16  commend you for that.  And I know that last year we

         17  took a tour of one of the local sites up in Harlem,

         18  and we had a conversation based on this, because

         19  obesity and diabetes obviously is one of the biggest

         20  ailments affecting our City in a way that's putting

         21  us in a very dire situation and also is one of the

         22  most heavily prevented type of ailments that we can

         23  get.  So I just want to say it's been a great

         24  pleasure being a partner with the Department of

         25  Health in terms of the SPARK program and Shape Up
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          2  New York because we do have a long way to go in

          3  terms of making sure New York City residents get the

          4  information they need and also have access to the

          5  medical clinics and gyms which we know is one of the

          6  biggest needs.  In fact, in some neighborhoods there

          7  are not as many gyms in close proximity, well lead

          8  to somebody not getting the same out of physical

          9  activity as others who do are in close proximity.

         10  At this point in time I ask my colleagues if they

         11  have any questions. Council Member Helen Sears, I

         12  know she has a question.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you very

         14  much.  Mine is just a very quick question.  We're

         15  talking about caloric counts and nutritional

         16  ingredients and changing eating habits of children

         17  and their families.  One of the things that I was

         18  doing for a masters in research was that in the

         19  bodegas, and this research was done in East Harlem,

         20  canned foods are the highest selling of everything.

         21  I mean the shelves are just stocked with them and

         22  Goya is one of the leading producers of these canned

         23  foods and they're carried all over and certainly in

         24  the bodegas.  At that time we found that there were

         25  certain nutritional ingredients that were absent in
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          2  them and actually tried approaching Goya to include

          3  what we thought was missing.  Has the agency

          4  approached any of these companies that produce their

          5  products and are so wide- selling in the City as to

          6  how we can get their cooperation in order to infuse

          7  within their products some of those ingredients that

          8  are necessary and are not there?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  We're

         10  in the process of designing a couple of programs.

         11  We're just putting the details together so I

         12  wouldn't want to describe them here, but we're

         13  trying to design some programs that we would push

         14  manufacturers to formulating products that are more

         15  in line with what we would consider healthy

         16  specifications.  The other way that's also being is

         17  through City procurement with the Department of

         18  Education reformulating its massive purchasing which

         19  also encourages manufacturers to shift the

         20  composition of their products.  They've looked at

         21  sugar, or salt and many other nutrient ingredients.

         22  One of the areas that the Mayor's Taskforce will be

         23  working with also is looking at all City procurement

         24  and we hope that through that we can also have an

         25  influence on composition of foods to become healthy.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Has anybody

          3  been listening in your early stages as to what your

          4  proposals are?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  It's

          6  too early to say.  We're really just beginning to

          7  work on those and we concur with you that this is a

          8  very promising and important area to work in.  And

          9  we'll keep you updated.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I think you

         11  should and hopefully it won't take too long because

         12  now matter how we may promote and have fast foods

         13  print and do what we're asking them to do, the fact

         14  of the matter is that in the home they are still

         15  using these products and they're using canned foods.

         16    And if anything we should try and have the

         17  companies be as cooperative as possible in going

         18  along with the drive in what we're trying to do

         19  because we can do everything if they're going back

         20  and adding to what they have, it's almost like

         21  taking a step forward and two steps back. I think we

         22  really need their cooperation for the areas that we

         23  can't control.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  It's

         25  definitely an area that requires collaboration with
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          2  the food industry, we agree.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  All right,

          4  thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  We've also been

          6  joined by Council Member Rosie Mendez and before we

          7  go on to the next question I just want to say, it is

          8  Valentine's Day so I'm going to urge everyone to get

          9  dark chocolates instead of milk chocolates and try

         10  strawberries because they are a very good

         11  alternative for gifts to your significant other and

         12  before we go on to the next question, yes, I know, I

         13  know, but you know what, I figured it wouldn't be a

         14  good idea to be talking about obesity and diabetes

         15  and bring chocolates to the hearing.  Strawberries,

         16  it's coming, it's coming, it's coming.  I ate them

         17  all on the way up.  Also I just want to mention that

         18  portion control is very key because I do know from

         19  being a Latino and everything we power- line the

         20  rice and the beans and the food, I mean it does get

         21  to the point where it's two or three servings in one

         22  sitting so one thing that we do have to communicate

         23  is the fact that not only do we have to eat healthy,

         24  but we also have to focus on portion control because

         25  you can cheat every now and then but as long as it's
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          2  in small quantities, it's not as bad as if you douse

          3  it on top of a second serving or something like

          4  that.  Part of the program, do you also teach about

          5  that?  Do you give out educational materials about

          6  how to determine what a good portion is for certain

          7  types of food categories, like a baked potato is one

          8  serving or like a fistful of rice is one serving,

          9  stuff like that.  Do you do that or no?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  Yes,

         11  first I wanted to thank you for your earlier kind

         12  words by the way Chairman Rivera, but yes, portion

         13  control and portion size escalation is an important

         14  part of people's increased caloric intake and it's a

         15  very important part of all of our educational

         16  outreach programs.  The lifestyle support programs

         17  that we're designing to support patients with

         18  diabetes much of the work is done around basic

         19  nutrition and understanding it.  There are simple

         20  exercises like looking at a soda bottle and seeing

         21  how many teaspoons of sugar go into the big bottles,

         22  seeing what a proper serving of meat is, and so

         23  forth.  We also hope that the calorie labeling

         24  provisions that were passed in December will help

         25  increase peoples consciousness about the high
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          2  caloric content of large portion sizes in food eaten

          3  away from the home.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Your charge

          5  reminded me of another documentary I saw where it

          6  shows how the caloric intake of Americans has

          7  increased from 1,400 to 2,500 in the past like 30

          8  years.  I reminds me of that and it does make sense

          9  because by increasing your caloric intake also

         10  increases the amount of pounds on your waistline.

         11  What is it, a pound is equivalent to like 3,500

         12  calories, so if you increasing your calorie intake

         13  by 500 a day, that's one pound a week.  Right?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  Yes,

         15  even less for young people we find that the gap that

         16  leading to the weight gain may be as low as 100 to

         17  150 calories and that's relatively simple feasible

         18  changes, a can of soda less, a little bit more

         19  exercise can make the difference between the child

         20  becoming obese or not becoming obese.  For teenagers

         21  the gap is a bit larger and for adults, but there

         22  has been both an lower increase in caloric

         23  consumption and a decrease in physical activity

         24  levels and how many calories people are burning and

         25  those two things going together have created a fatal
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          2  cocktail of obesity.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  I guess with the

          4  increase of sugary drinks and PlayStations and X-

          5  Box's that decrease physical activity and the

          6  consumption of low fat milk, is a bad chemistry

          7  there right?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  The

          9  low fat milk parts okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  I'm saying with

         11  the decrease of low fat milk, with a decrease of

         12  consumption of low fat milk and physical activity.

         13  It's a bad --

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  I

         15  think one of the things that we like to stress is

         16  this isn't people being bad. Things really have

         17  changed in our environment.  Our work is different.

         18  We sit at computers much of the day.  Many people

         19  take cars to work.  Fewer people do manual labor.

         20  So there really have been changes in the way people

         21  live their lives and spend their time that have

         22  changed their caloric needs whereas our eating

         23  habits have not changed or if anything have gotten

         24  worse and those two elements together have had very

         25  serious consequences.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Okay.  Council

          3  Member Dickens.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you so

          6  much Mr. Chair.  Thank you also Dr. Silver because

          7  the Department of Health that's on East 115th

          8  Street, I have used it, I have been there, and of

          9  course I was there when the City Council went and

         10  it's a great, great source of information as well as

         11  treatment center.  So I'm glad that you chose to

         12  stay in our East Harlem community and I thank you

         13  for that.

         14                 I'm a former diabetic.  In fact I'm

         15  my Chair's poster- child having lost 130 pounds.

         16  Yes I am, and accepting all applause.  I am acutely

         17  interested, in fact I had formed a Harlem chapter of

         18  diabetes control.  But are you aware that at Home

         19  Hospital, Dr. Williams, I don't know if you're

         20  familiar with him, he did a study, a two year study

         21  of children in an elementary school, two elementary

         22  schools in the Harlem community and what they found

         23  is that by the fifth grade, these children were at

         24  the adult onset of Type II diabetes and pre-

         25  hypertensive and in following these kids, by the
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          2  time they are 19, they are in jeopardy of losing

          3  limbs, and in fact there was one young girl who they

          4  followed who lost part of one foot and has now lost

          5  part of another foot.  Are you aware of that study

          6  at all?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  I

          8  wasn't aware of that specific study, although

          9  perhaps Dr. Berger or Dr. Chamany are, but the

         10  existence of Type II diabetes, which when I was a

         11  physician training 25 years ago you would never see

         12  in children and now becoming increasingly common in

         13  adolescence and even young children is one of the

         14  most tragic faces of what's happening here and it

         15  means that these complications that you're

         16  mentioning that in the past might happen in a 60 or

         17  70 year old lady are now starting to occur in 20

         18  year olds and 25 year olds. --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Exactly.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  --

         21  And this is what we want to turn around and stop.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  And is there

         23  anything that your Department can do to help the

         24  Department of Ed see the utter importance of

         25  including, once again as they used to do, physical
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          2  activity in our schools as part of the program.

          3  When I went to public school physical ed was part of

          4  the program, it no longer is. In many instances what

          5  was the gym is used as a classroom.  Some schools

          6  are trying to connect with local Ys and other

          7  schools in order to bring the children in for once a

          8  week physical ed, but if all the Departments of the

          9  City, if the government does not see the importance

         10  of physical activity, because I was an obese child

         11  and I had physical activity, I just didn't use it,

         12  but now the children don't even have that option.

         13  And if we do not work together, if all of our

         14  Departments do not work together to see to it that

         15  physical ed is put back into the Department of Ed's

         16  program, than our children are going to lose out

         17  because with high technology coming in and with all

         18  the DVDs and the televisions, there's going to be a

         19  greater decrease in physical activity if they do not

         20  get it from schools.  Is there anything that the

         21  Department of Health can begin for formulate to

         22  begin to connect with other departments and

         23  particularly the Department of Ed in order to try to

         24  foster this? That's one part.  The other part of my

         25  question is at the Harlem 1 Children Zone
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          2  (phonetic), recognizing diabetes in children and

          3  obesity, they not only are trying to have physical

          4  ed and education to teach the children how to eat,

          5  but they have classes for their parents to come in

          6  and learn how to prepare foods properly because the

          7  Council has funded many green- markets around the

          8  City, but it's more than just, you know, because you

          9  can go and buy the greens from the greens- market

         10  but if I have put fat back in it I have not done

         11  anything, so that's why it's so important.  I'm glad

         12  to see that there doing it.  I think when our

         13  hospitals see a young person coming in and being

         14  diagnosed with diabetes, is there a program set up

         15  to educate their parents, and not only that they

         16  have to take insulin or take medicine, but in the

         17  preparation of foods which is so important that we

         18  begin to re- educate the parents in how to prepare

         19  the food for prevention.  Everything that we talk

         20  about is reactive.  We've got to begin to also

         21  address prevention and particularly in minority

         22  neighborhoods because in my community diabetes is

         23  more than 50 percent with young people.  It's

         24  probable about 70 percent, between pre- diabetes and

         25  diabetes being diagnosed.  It's horrific, but we've
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          2  got to change the mind- set and if the Department of

          3  Health on 115th Street, I'm just using them, if all

          4  of them started an educational course for the

          5  parents of these children to learn the preparation

          6  of foods, as well as yes, there's a green market on

          7  the corner, go buy some greens.  It's more to it

          8  than that.  I was raised in a household that

          9  prepared greens that way, that fried chicken, didn't

         10  know you could bake it, and we have to educate the

         11  parents, the grandparents that are raising these

         12  children, they have to be re- educated that it's all

         13  right to prepare food without certain elements that

         14  we're used to culturally used to preparing our

         15  foods.  And how to make it still taste good.  Is

         16  there something like that that can be done?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  Let

         18  me address a couple of your questions.  One, we

         19  completely agree that having a consistently

         20  available physical education in as many childhood

         21  settings as possible is clearly one of the effective

         22  approaches to increasing physical activity levels.

         23  In the area that we regulate, which is daycare as I

         24  mentioned, we passed these new regulations that went

         25  into effect which increased to sixty minutes per day
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          2  for children in group daycare.  The requirement for

          3  physical activity, 30 minutes of which is structured

          4  activity over the age of three so we will be

          5  implementing and enforcing those measures for group

          6  daycare aged children.  As regards to the Department

          7  of Education, they of course would have to speak for

          8  themselves.  I can talk a little bit about what the

          9  Health Department has been doing in collaboration

         10  with the department.  Several years ago our office

         11  of School Health created a position of a coordinator

         12  or physical activity and recruited a person who was

         13  taking charge of that area. She subsequently was

         14  moved over to the Department of Education and has

         15  been developing a revamping of the physical activity

         16  curriculum before the Department of Education called

         17  Physical Best.  I believe they have testified here

         18  as well on that.  There has been an expansion of

         19  physical activity and the number of phys ed teachers

         20  in the school system.  It is still a challenge for

         21  the school system from the point of view of the

         22  Department, we're also taking the SPARK curriculum

         23  and we're working our way from the bottom of the

         24  elementary school up, staring with the pre- k

         25  teachers which has been very successful and we've
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          2  had a great response from pre- k helping to cover

          3  the universe of pre- k and then move into the lower

          4  grades with SPARK as fast as we can feasibly do from

          5  the point of view of operations and funding so we'd

          6  like to increase that. We've been starting training

          7  of recess aides for example and trying to work in

          8  other settings in the school as well and not just be

          9  dependent on strictly physical education classes to

         10  provide physical activity opportunities in the

         11  school and because we know that there are some

         12  structural problems like gym access and so forth.

         13  So thinking what can you do in a classroom, what can

         14  you do on the playground, what can you do in as many

         15  of these settings as possible, what can you do in

         16  the afterschool program, and trying to consistently

         17  make these physical activity opportunities

         18  available. We've also mapped out for three DPHO

         19  neighborhoods what physical activity resources are

         20  available in the community.  You commented on the

         21  issue of gyms where in addition to those guides that

         22  we've produced for the three DPHO neighborhoods were

         23  doing a mapping project now to try and look at

         24  availability Citywide of physical activity, sites,

         25  parks, gymnasiums and so forth in relation to
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          2  different communities in the City.  We also have

          3  something called the School Wellness Council program

          4  which was funded by the State which is currently in,

          5  I forget the exact number of schools, we started in

          6  four and I think we're trying to go up to sixteen

          7  this coming year.  Working with parents and with

          8  members of the school to create nutrition policies

          9  and other wellness policies in the school context.

         10  There is a program called Cook Shop that's being

         11  implemented in the schools as part of the school

         12  food program that is also looking at teaching

         13  children and their families how to use vegetables,

         14  how to use different cooking techniques along the

         15  lines of what you were mentioning --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Can they

         17  bring their --

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  I

         19  think they can in some schools, I'm not sure if it's

         20  working that way in all schools and we are

         21  requesting funds to be able to hire more

         22  nutritionists through the Food Stamp Nutrition

         23  Education program that would work at least initially

         24  in daycare, but doing this type of education with

         25  family is also on healthy food preparation and
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          2  eating.  And we've also distributed written

          3  materials which I think is less effective than the

          4  kind of you know hands on type training that you're

          5  discussing.  That we've provided to pretty much the

          6  families of all elementary and high school age

          7  children in the system but it takes more than just

          8  that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Can

         10  something be implemented within the Department of

         11  Health at your sites where there are children who

         12  have been diagnosed, that those parents can be

         13  brought in to teach them how to prepare the foods

         14  that we culturally prepare?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  For

         16  children diagnosed with diabetes?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Yes.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  We

         19  don't currently have a program looking at that.

         20  We've been hoping to do actually a more systematic

         21  look at all of our children with diabetes in the

         22  school system. That has not begun yet but it is

         23  something that we could evaluate or look into.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Would you

         25  please.  And are children regularly screened in a
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          2  school?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  No we

          4  don't recommend routine screening of children.  We

          5  recommend routine screening of older adults, people

          6  who are over 45 who are obese and certain other

          7  population groups, but not routine screening of

          8  children.  We recommend routine robust prevention in

          9  children.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  But do you

         11  think that children, particularly in certain

         12  communities that are beginning to develop Type II

         13  adult onset Type II diabetes, that maybe we need to

         14  start to screen these children so that we know

         15  what's going on with their health?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:

         17  Frankly Councilwoman, my opinion on that issue is

         18  that the resources that would used, the cost of

         19  routine screening in childhood would be very high

         20  and I would much, much, much rather take those

         21  resources and put them into prevention programs and

         22  physical activity programs and nutrition programs

         23  that would keep those children from getting that

         24  condition in the first place because we know what

         25  needs to be done to prevent it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  They already

          3  have it that's why I'm concerned.  They already have

          4  it.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  They

          6  have it but it will be reversed probably with

          7  changes in their lifestyle.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  What

          9  constitutes screening, by the way and then that's my

         10  last question.  What constitutes screening?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:

         12  Proper screening is doing a fasting blood sugar

         13  test, not doing A1C measures do do, but for proper

         14  screen for diabetes is a fasting blood sugar measure

         15  and oral glucose tolerance test.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  What's the

         17  cost of that?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:

         19  Actually the complete screen is an oral glucose

         20  tolerance test.  The cost is, Dr. Berger is saying

         21  that it is $65 for an oral glucose tolerance test.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Per

         23  screening test.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:

         25  That's correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  All right,

          3  thank you so much.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  Thank

          5  you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  We've been

          7  joined by Council Member Helen Foster and

          8  Councilwoman Rosie Mendez leads by example, she

          9  asked me to be her Valentine and she gave me an

         10  apple, so I want to thank her and accept her as my

         11  Valentine for today.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  It's even

         13  heart- shaped.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  It's even heart-

         15  shaped, look at that.  We've been joined by Council

         16  Member Miguel Martinez. Council Member Kendall

         17  Stewart has the next line of questions.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you

         19  Mr. Chair.  First of all I would like to say Happy

         20  Valentine to all the ladies in the House.  I would

         21  have liked to bring each of you a rose but instead I

         22  wear my tie so that you can share the red rose.

         23  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  They're all

         25  blushing right now.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:

          3  Commissioner, what's that?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  You're making

          5  all the ladies blush in the House.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Well it's

          7  okay.  As an outreach, is there any collaboration

          8  with the schools or educators to have nutrition as a

          9  vital part of their curriculum in the schools?

         10  Being taught and maybe starting from intermediate

         11  and high schools?  I'm talking about DOHMH playing a

         12  role in terms of advising them to do this as an

         13  outreach.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:

         15  There's clearly a role for a nutrition education in

         16  the school setting, DOHMH has collaborated with the

         17  Department of Education in revamping the health

         18  education curriculum that's in use in the schools

         19  which has incorporated nutritional content.

         20  Definitely in elementary school. I don't have the

         21  information on middle and high school.  I don't

         22  know, I can't speak to middle and high school today.

         23

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  But do you

         25  think it's an important piece of our outreach?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  I

          3  think education is important and I think also

          4  changing our environment is important. I think just

          5  educating without making changes in food

          6  availability in the neighborhood, food served in the

          7  school, food served in the workplace is not as

          8  effective.  I think if we can combine educational

          9  outreach and doing what we can to make the food

         10  environment healthier, than we'll have a double

         11  punch that will start to have some impact.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I know how

         13  our society thinks.  We think in terms of treatment

         14  rather than prevention and that's why I'm trying to

         15  see if you have a definite program in terms of

         16  reaching out to the schools and other areas to

         17  educate folks about having a proper nutrition.  My

         18  other question is basically how much does your

         19  Department spend on diabetes as compared to another,

         20  for example infectious diseases or even prevention?

         21  Do you have any program or any way you can tell how

         22  much money is being spent on diabetes by itself as

         23  compared to the entire budget.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  The

         25  amount of funding spent on diabetes is, hang on a
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          2  second, our total diabetes budget for this year was

          3  $1.9 million.  That does not include all of the

          4  activities around physical activity for example that

          5  are in our physical activity and nutrition program

          6  such as the funds received from City Council for

          7  SPARK, so if we included those we'd be closer to

          8  three million or more spent on diabetes and some of

          9  the physical activity prevention.  That's both for

         10  OTPS and PS funding.  On the scale of Health

         11  Department expenditures that's quite small.  What

         12  you see, there are major federal funding streams for

         13  certain areas of health, these include infectious

         14  diseases, such as HIV or tuberculosis.  There are

         15  major funding streams, federal funding streams for

         16  mental health services and for substance abuse

         17  services, chronic disease unfortunately even though

         18  it's the major killer of the population, does not

         19  have major federal funding streams to support public

         20  health work in these areas so that most

         21  municipalities in States are actually quite

         22  drastically underfunded when it comes to developing

         23  community programming and public health

         24  interventions for heart disease, for cancer, for

         25  diabetes and obesity.  Commissioner Frieden has a
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          2  great slide which I don't have here today but it

          3  looks at the amount of funding in relation to the

          4  number of deaths caused by a condition and there is

          5  almost an inverse relationship when it comes to

          6  National Public Health Funds.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Years ago,

          8  many, many years ago, we used to think that gout and

          9  diabetes were the rich man's disease.  Gout

         10  continues to be considered somewhat the rich man's

         11  disease, but however diabetes is now the poor man's

         12  disease.  How are we dealing with the fact that we

         13  find that diabetes is greater in the poor areas?

         14  How are we dealing with that in terms of educating

         15  the folks?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:

         17  You're absolutely correct where obesity in the past

         18  was a sign of wealth in ancient societies, today if

         19  we look at our population the wealthier are skinny

         20  and poor are suffering from obesity.  All of the

         21  Health Departments efforts have been targeted with

         22  priority to our highest risk neighborhoods.  As I

         23  mentioned, the District Public Health Office

         24  neighborhoods, which are South Bronx, Section

         25  Central Brooklyn, and East and Central Harlem have
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          2  been our priority communities for intervention.  All

          3  of our programs addressing diabetes are rolled out

          4  in those communities first and if resources allow we

          5  extend them Citywide but we have tried to start all

          6  of our educational activities, our A1C registry

          7  outreach is starting in the South Bronx and will be

          8  extended to these neighborhoods as soon as we can.

          9  So its basically been a resource and intervention

         10  targeting strategy to address the disparities that

         11  you are calling attention to sir.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you.  Does

         14  anybody else have any other questions.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  Also

         16  I should add, Community Coalition Building has been

         17  very important.  We've been working to create food

         18  and fitness coalitions in each of those three

         19  neighborhoods and we are now just starting Citywide

         20  to try and bring as many of the community

         21  organizations and structures into a collaborative

         22  effort to address obesity and diabetes in those

         23  communities.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Council Member

         25  Helen Foster.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  I'm sorry,

          3  you may have gone over this because I was late.

          4  Your community coalition made me think of this.  Do

          5  you work with the churches and the clergy?  I know

          6  that especially in my community, in the Black and

          7  Latino Community, churches are a very big deal.  We

          8  all know diabetes, the kids are getting younger and

          9  younger and it's epidemic.  My Grandmother lost both

         10  of her legs to diabetes.  I had an Aunt that died of

         11  diabetic coma, so you know, it's there.  But

         12  specifically working, when you say community

         13  organizations, do you have anything where you work

         14  specifically with clergy or churches?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  Yes,

         16  the Department has the Minority Health program which

         17  has been working primarily to create the ecumenical

         18  groups on health.  We had one in Brooklyn for some

         19  time now.  There was one created in Northern

         20  Manhattan last year.  I don't think the Bronx one

         21  has been created yet, but I believe we have about

         22  700 institutions, I wouldn't put my hand in the fire

         23  for that number.  Working with us, many which have

         24  health ministries, we've been setting up physical

         25  activity programs in some of those establishments
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          2  but still a relatively small number, and we're doing

          3  some diabetes self-management trainings with church

          4  groups.  We think there's a tremendous potential to

          5  expand this work and we hope to do so --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Well let me

          7  just say as the daughter of a minister and someone

          8  who is very tied into the churches not only in my

          9  District by Bronx- wide, that is the perfect source

         10  to get the information out.  There's not a Black

         11  church that doesn't have a Sunday dinner after

         12  church.  Things like that that we can start with

         13  baby steps in terms of slowly, as Council Member

         14  Dickens was saying in terms of the cooking, you know

         15  for example, at my church my sister gave up meat

         16  years ago and obviously being the ministers daughter

         17  they would make two pots of everything until they

         18  realized they could make greens with smoked turkey

         19  and things like that.  But I think it's the perfect

         20  entrance, Black church, the Spanish speaking

         21  Pentecostal church that people spend a lot, that's

         22  there New York Times for a lack of a better word and

         23  that's where they get their information and it's

         24  something that is specifically with diabetes.  There

         25  may be some health issues that we're still kind of
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          2  like ostriches with their heads in the sand but

          3  specifically diabetes, you can right in and get the

          4  information out and they have active youth choirs,

          5  youth organizations, everybody you're targeting is

          6  in one location.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  We

          8  agree.  We think it is a very important group to

          9  work with.  We've had a tremendous response.  Right

         10  know we're launching a hypertension initiative with

         11  a number of Brooklyn churches and we hope to expand

         12  the work in diabetes as soon as we can.  So

         13  basically we've had a lot of interest from all the

         14  churches we've been able to work with so far. And if

         15  you have any ideas, please, let us know, we'd

         16  welcome them. We want to expand that work.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you.  Any

         18  other questions?  I see none.  Thank you very much

         19  for your efforts and for everything that you're

         20  doing.  It is a long haul ahead of us but I believe

         21  that if we continue on this path that we can

         22  actually hopefully strike a balance.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  Thank

         25  you Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Next we have

          3  Margaret Brennan from Community Health Care

          4  Association, New York State.  Oh you have the

          5  testimony, you can give it to the Sergeant of Arms

          6  right here in the back, and he'll distribute it to

          7  us.  Just make sure the light is off for the thing

          8  to be on.

          9                 MS. BRENNAN:  Is off or on?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  It's on, I hear

         11  you.

         12                 MS. BRENNAN:  Okay.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Ready to go.

         14                 MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you for the

         15  opportunity to provide testimony today.  My name is

         16  Margaret Brennan and I'm the Chief Operating Officer

         17  of the Community Health Care Association of New York

         18  State, CHCANYS.

         19                 CHCANYS is New York's primary care

         20  association of Health Centers.  These Health Centers

         21  serve as the family doctor and healthcare home for

         22  over 600,000 New York City residents at more than

         23  200 sites.  It is a one stop shopping approach to

         24  care. These centers offer family medicine as well as

         25  comprehensive primary care, including OBGYN,
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          2  pediatrics, dental, laboratory, mental health, and

          3  substance abuse services.  Most health center

          4  patients have family incomes below federal poverty

          5  level, 74 percent are racial or ethnic minorities,

          6  44 percent are covered by Medicaid, and 29 percent

          7  are uninsured.

          8                 New York's community health centers

          9  provide:  Access to health care regardless of

         10  insurance status or ability to pay: A primary care

         11  home for all who need it, especially low income and

         12  uninsured people;  proven results in reducing

         13  disparities through innovative models of care,

         14  including chronic care management;  a program that

         15  has been refined and improved over three decades;

         16  and a program that has convincingly demonstrated the

         17  ability to both save money and offer high quality

         18  care.

         19                 Ninety percent of individuals with

         20  diabetes in the US have Type II or adult onset

         21  diabetes, a disease closely linked to obesity and

         22  lack of exercise.  The New York City Department of

         23  Health and Mental Hygiene estimates that as many as

         24  one million New Yorkers are clinically obese.

         25  Obesity is most prevalent in low income
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          2  neighborhoods throughout New York City.  Many of

          3  these neighborhoods also have the highest incidents

          4  of other serious health disparities including

          5  diabetes and cardiovascular disease. Community

          6  Health Centers are uniquely positioned to help stem

          7  the growing problem of obesity and subsequently

          8  diabetes.  To provide higher quality care to a

          9  larger number of clinically obese patients Community

         10  Health Centers need to implement and expand care

         11  models to make prevention, diagnosis, and treatment

         12  for obesity as routine as childhood immunization has

         13  become in many of the same neighborhoods.  Over the

         14  last several years, many Community Health Centers

         15  have implemented highly effective population based

         16  care models  to address various health disparities

         17  including diabetes. Across the City, CHCANYS has

         18  been working with these health centers to improve

         19  health outcomes for their patients with diabetes.

         20  We must continue these efforts and adapt and

         21  disseminate these care models to a larger number of

         22  health centers and sites serving the highest risk

         23  neighborhoods and communities.

         24                 The City Council is to be commended

         25  for taking meaningful steps to help reduce the
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          2  frequency and severity of these and other poor

          3  health outcomes stemming from obesity.  Most

          4  strikingly, New York has become the first major City

          5  in the US to adopt a ban on artificial transfat in

          6  restaurants which CHCANYS fully supported which is

          7  strongly implicated in the development of obesity

          8  and metabolic disorder.  Now it is essential to

          9  support Council initiatives with programs that both

         10  target the most effected areas and implement proven

         11  models designed specifically for these populations.

         12  CHCANYS goal is to be your partner in that effort.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you.  Do

         15  any of my colleagues have any questions?  See none.

         16  Thank you very much. You said it all.

         17                 Next we have Janet Helt from the NYU

         18  Institute of Community Health and Research, and she

         19  represents Dr. Mariano Rey and Antonio Convit.

         20                 MS. HELT:  Convit.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  There were go.

         22                 MS. HELT:  Thank you.  Thank you so

         23  much for inviting us to be here today.  I am

         24  speaking on behalf of Dr. Mariano Rey, who is the

         25  Founder and Director of the NYU Institute of
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          2  Community Health and Research and Dr. Antonio Convit

          3  who's the Principle Investigator of our study on

          4  Banishing Obesity and Diabetes in our Youth.  He is

          5  also Associate Director of the Institute for Obesity

          6  and Metabolic Disease Programs and he is the

          7  Director of the NYU Center for Brain Health.  And

          8  I'm here to talk about diabetes, academic

          9  achievement, pre- diabetes, and adolescence.  I will

         10  be reading remarks on behalf of Dr. Rey and Dr.

         11  Convit since they were unable to appear today due to

         12  the weather.

         13                 In our own wonderful City, perhaps

         14  the most progressive and welcoming City on the face

         15  of this earth, I'm sorry to report that the rate of

         16  Type II diabetes is growing exponentially among our

         17  children.  The Centers for Disease Control has

         18  stated that the prevalence nationwide for obesity

         19  among our children has quadrupled in the last 25

         20  years.  I'd like to repeat that.  The prevalence for

         21  obesity, not just overweight but obesity, among our

         22  nations children has quadrupled in only 25 years.

         23                 In New York City the percentages of

         24  obesity in children are staggering.  Thirty- one

         25  percent of Latino children, that's nearly one in
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          2  three Latino children, twenty- three percent of

          3  African American children, that's nearly one in

          4  four, and fourteen percent of Asian American

          5  children are obese.  And we're not just talking

          6  about overweight children.  Those numbers would make

          7  the figures significantly higher.  We're talking

          8  only about obese children and obesity as Dr. Silver

          9  remarked, is a Hallmark of the onset of Type II

         10  diabetes.  Type II diabetes and obesity are

         11  inexplicably linked.  As Chairman Rivera has noted,

         12  Asian Americans have the fastest growing rate of new

         13  cases of Type II diabetes than any other ethnic

         14  group in this nation.  There numbers are followed by

         15  Latino's.

         16                 According to the Centers for Disease

         17  Control, Asian American and Latino adolescence born

         18  in the US to immigrant parents are more than twice

         19  as likely to be overweight as foreign born

         20  adolescence who move to the US.  And according to

         21  the National Institute for Diabetes and Digestive

         22  and Kidney Diseases, the Thrifty- Gene's Theory

         23  proposes that African Americans, Hispanic Americans,

         24  Asian Americans and Native Americans inherited a

         25  gene from their ancestors which enabled them to use
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          2  food more efficiently during feast and famine

          3  cycles.  This genetic predilection, plus our modern

          4  day American sedentary lifestyle causes certain

          5  populations to be even more susceptible to obesity

          6  and to developing Type II diabetes.

          7                 Among Native American populations and

          8  in New York City we're said to have the highest

          9  population of Native American's of any other major

         10  American City.  The rate of Type II diabetes has

         11  increased over thirty percent just between 1990 and

         12  1997, according to a study by the Federal Centers

         13  for Disease Control and Prevention.  A generation

         14  ago, children who became afflicted with diabetes

         15  presented with what used to be commonly called

         16  juvenile diabetes, we now call that Type I diabetes.

         17    And when you have juvenile diabetes, you know you

         18  have to comply with blood testing and medication

         19  because otherwise you will feel very sick, very

         20  quickly.

         21                 When you are first diagnosed with

         22  Type II diabetes you typically don't fell very sick,

         23  so people can have Type II diabetes for a long time

         24  and not pay much attention to it.  This has

         25  particular implications for New York City's children
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          2  which I'll talk about in a few minutes.  But until

          3  about 1990, when we used to speak of diabetic

          4  children, we were speaking only of Type I, or as I

          5  said, juvenile diabetes.  Since about 1990, however,

          6  over 40 percent of the new cases of diabetes in

          7  children in this Country are now Type II.  It used

          8  to be called adult onset and those numbers are

          9  rapidly increasing as we've talked about today.  So

         10  we no longer talk about juvenile and adult onset,

         11  now we speak of Type I and Type II diabetes.  And

         12  Type II as we know can make you very, very sick and

         13  lead to conditions that can kill, but it does so in

         14  a very insidious way and that's why it is so

         15  imperative that we raise awareness about this

         16  disease and we prevent it from taking hold of our

         17  children.

         18                 A key factor here is the bodies

         19  ability to control glucose.  Glucose fuels the

         20  brain, so proper glucose regulation by the body is

         21  essential to brain health and optimum functioning.

         22  Overweight and obese children and adolescents are at

         23  risk for losing the ability to regulate their

         24  glucose properly.  This condition is known as pre-

         25  diabetes and it's at the root of metabolic syndrome.
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          2

          3                 Dr. Antonio Convit, who I said is

          4  Medical Director of the NYU Center for Brain Health

          5  and Associate Director of our Institute for

          6  Community Health and Research, oversees our Obesity

          7  and Metabolic Disease programs and he is one of the

          8  very few researchers in this Country studying the

          9  impact of glucose regulation on the brain of obese

         10  adolescents and what is he finding is staggering.

         11  In adolescence with pre- diabetes and Type II

         12  diabetes, the body's inability to regulate glucose

         13  is destroying their neuro- pathways and impairing

         14  the children's cognitive functioning.  This was

         15  known to happen in older adults with Type II

         16  diabetes but now we're seeing it with pre- diabetes

         17  and Type II diabetes in teenagers.

         18                 Pre- diabetes can present as problems

         19  with focus and concentration, problems with short-

         20  term memory, lower IQ, lower spelling achievement,

         21  and lower mathematical achievement among similar

         22  academic problems.  In other words, even having pre

         23  diabetes, a condition which is reversible through

         24  diet and lifestyle changes, having pre- diabetes is

         25  likely to go undiagnosed until a child presents with
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          2  full blown diabetes, or it may be misdiagnosed

          3  because these cognitive impairments mimic learning

          4  disabilities such as ADD.  And so for all we know we

          5  have kinds languishing in special education classes

          6  or kids that have been labeled as slow and won't be

          7  achieving at the level they could be if they were

          8  properly screened, diagnosed, and cared for.

          9                 For New York City's immigrant and

         10  first generation children, and particularly for

         11  Asian, Latino, and African American children of

         12  color from low income homes, who are more than one

         13  third as likely to be overweight or obese than their

         14  white counterparts, this is a missed opportunity to

         15  diagnose and intervene with a child who is pre-

         16  diabetic.  That's a missed opportunity for that

         17  child to grow up being able to break out of the

         18  cycle of poverty caused by low wage jobs and

         19  crippling illness, and with adolescence the

         20  intervention does not have to be medical it can be

         21  done through diet and lifestyle and the damage can

         22  be reversed.  And on the other hand as we've

         23  discussed earlier, if the physical condition

         24  continues to deteriorate to the point of having full

         25  blown Type II diabetes, these young people will
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          2  suffer even greater losses as they grow into

          3  adulthood, loss of site, of limbs, nerve damage,

          4  cardiovascular damage, and so forth.

          5                 We know that young people that

          6  develop Type II diabetes before age 20, will have

          7  their lives cut short by 20 years.  And we know that

          8  if left untreated they will begin suffering from

          9  diabetic complications starting before age 30.

         10  Because of Type II diabetes, it is said this is the

         11  first generation of American Children who may not

         12  live to be as old as their parents, and as a parent,

         13  not only as a community health advocate, I think you

         14  will agree with me that no parent should have to

         15  bury their children because of this preventable

         16  disease.

         17                 We know that among overweight and

         18  obese adolescence of all races the rate of metabolic

         19  syndrome, which is pre- diabetes plus cardiovascular

         20  disease, is a staggering 25 percent.  This rate may

         21  be higher among children of color who are also less

         22  likely to receive preventive health care.

         23                 Type II diabetes is like a silent

         24  ticker- tape running in the background silently

         25  doing its irreversible damage. For adolescents who
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          2  are susceptible to peer pressure, monitoring and

          3  adhering to a healthy diet proposes an even more

          4  tremendous challenge.  It is entirely possible for

          5  adults and teenagers to deny the internal ravages of

          6  this terrible illness until the damage has become

          7  irreversible.  And this is especially problematic

          8  for immigrant and first generation adolescents

          9  striving to adopt American culture including our

         10  fast food diet.

         11                 In New York City where 33 percent of

         12  our residents were born outside of the US, compared

         13  to 11 percent nationwide, these problems are

         14  particularly pertinent.  Currently some 800,000

         15  people are known to have Type II diabetes.  These

         16  numbers will only increase just as the epidemic of

         17  obesity has increased among our children.  The human

         18  and economic costs will be staggering and yet they

         19  are preventable.  With early detection and

         20  intervention, Type II diabetes and cardiovascular

         21  disease from obesity can be prevented or reversed.

         22  And in fact the NYU Institute of Community Health

         23  will be meeting with Chairman Rivera on Friday, may

         24  I say what time, at 1:00, and I would hope that

         25  members of the Health Committee might be able to

                                                            61

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  join us.  We will be presenting a screening and

          3  intervention program in partnership with New York

          4  City High Schools that have school- based clinics on

          5  site to screen and intervene nonmedically with

          6  children, it's called The Body Project.  We will be

          7  also in Albany at the Department of Health on March

          8  1st, presenting it there as well.

          9                 I thank you so much for your time.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         11  much.  First line of questioning will come from

         12  Councilwoman Maria del Carmen Arroyo.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Thank you Mr.

         14  Chair.  It's amazing what you learn in these

         15  hearings.  The information that you're imparting

         16  here, is this information that has been published,

         17  is it still research on- going, what's the status?

         18                 MS. HELT:  The data that we have has

         19  not yet been published.  The data that we have is

         20  based on 26 children with 26 matched controls.  In

         21  other words, 26 obese children that did not have

         22  metabolic syndrome or pre- diabetes, and 26 that

         23  did.  And across the board we saw lower IQ, lower

         24  spelling achievement and lower mathematical

         25  achievement.  So we would like to screen, starting
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          2  next year, with the help of the City Council, we

          3  would like to screen 7,200 high school students for

          4  this disease.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Has there

          6  been any engagement with the Department of Education

          7   --

          8                 MS. HELT:  Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  -- Regarding

         10  the findings and discussions about how performance

         11  in a classroom can be a trigger or a flag for the

         12  screening of an individual?

         13                 MS. HELT:  I cannot answer for Dr.

         14  Convit as to the exact nature of his conversations,

         15  but I do know that he has been talking to the

         16  Department of Education and the Department of Health

         17  with regard to the need for bringing the screening

         18  programs into the high schools that have the clinics

         19  on site.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  So the

         21  children that are in this study, in this research

         22  are individuals that have already been identified as

         23  diabetic?

         24                 MS. HELT:  These are children that

         25  came to Dr. Convit's office at NYU.  What we are
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          2  proposing to do through the institute, because we do

          3  partner at the grassroots level throughout the

          4  community, and by that we do mean churches, schools,

          5  social service organizations, and other places where

          6  people feel trusted and comfortable coming forward

          7  for screening.  What we are proposing to do is to do

          8  this screening in schools with at- risk kids.  In

          9  other words we would be measuring body mass index of

         10  7,200 kids and out of those kids we would be

         11  following up with glucose, with the blood- work for

         12  metabolic syndrome in the 800 or so children that we

         13  expect to find presenting with the symptoms.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Do you

         15  anticipate that with the findings of the study, that

         16  there will be a discussion about classroom

         17  performance and the potential for identifying those

         18  at risk?

         19                 MS. HELT:  Absolutely, and I've

         20  already been in discussion with another Council

         21  Member who Chaired your Education Committee.  I've

         22  spoken with his scheduler and we talked at length

         23  just the other day.  We would like very much for

         24  this to be a partnership between the Health

         25  Committees and the Education Committees.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Thank you Mr.

          3  Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

          5  much and I look forward to meeting with you on

          6  Friday.

          7                 MS. HELT:  Thank you so much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  The last person

          9  to testify is from the Charles B. Wang Community

         10  Health Center.  We had the opportunity of touring

         11  the facility about a couple of months ago and it's a

         12  great tour and a great facility, and I want to

         13  welcome Heidi Emerson to join us here today.

         14                 MS. EMERSON:  Thank you.  Thank you

         15  for giving me the opportunity to speak with you

         16  today.

         17                 The Charles B. Wang Community Health

         18  Center is, as you know since you visited us, is a

         19  nonprofit qualified community health center and it's

         20  a primary care provider to the Asian American

         21  Community in New York City.  Our patients are

         22  predominantly low income, publicly insured, or

         23  uninsured and have a primary language other than

         24  English.

         25                 Diabetes is a particular concern to
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          2  Asian American Community, however, there has

          3  previously been very little data on diabetes and

          4  research on diabetes for the Asian American

          5  population.  In fact there was a study quite a few

          6  years ago on the Japanese population that did

          7  suggest that the prevalence was very high for the

          8  Asian American population and in fact I was pleased

          9  to see that the New York City Health Survey was able

         10  to show how extraordinarily high it is for the Asian

         11  American population.  In fact this survey found that

         12  sixteen percent of New York City Asian Americans

         13  have diabetes.  That's one in six Asian American New

         14  Yorkers and another 32 percent has prediabetes which

         15  for which we've talked about here today for which

         16  prevention could really help prevent the diabetes

         17  from progressing.

         18                 So one of the exciting things that

         19  our Health Center as a primary care provider for

         20  this population has done is to implement for example

         21  clinical informatics or the electronic medial record

         22  which you had the opportunity to see when you came

         23  to visit us.  This electronic medical record will

         24  give us the opportunity to improve diabetes care

         25  management and will facilitate the ability for us to
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          2  conduct population management.  Other health centers

          3  in the City are also undertaking this initiative and

          4  I think it's very exciting and can really improve

          5  diabetes management.

          6                 One of the challenges for an

          7  organization such as ours, however, is trying to

          8  find the resources required to support and maintain

          9  and continue to use this system.  So therefore we

         10  really encourage you to continue to support the

         11  health centers efforts to invest in clinical

         12  informatics to combat this epidemic as well as other

         13  chronic conditions.

         14                 In addition, as the Council Members

         15  have also noted, that self management as well as

         16  lifestyle changes are very important for diabetes

         17  care as well as for prevention.  This is something

         18  that the community health center really does try to

         19  provide for its patients however, we do need support

         20  to continue to provide culturally sensitive and

         21  appropriate health education and case management for

         22  our patients which is really critical for our

         23  population.  That's again, I just wanted to

         24  encourage you to continue to support our efforts to

         25  combat this epidemic within our population and for
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          2  the City's most vulnerable population.

          3                 Thank you.  Any questions?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Any questions?

          5  Yes, Council Member Foster.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  You know no

          7  question is stupid but this might be ignorant.  I

          8  was shocked to hear that diabetes is high in the

          9  Asian community.  Given what I know and maybe

         10  obviously I'm more familiar with Black people and

         11  how we eat, and the things that can lead to

         12  diabetes.  What is the trigger within the Asian

         13  communities that is leading to the high rate of

         14  diabetes?

         15                 MS. EMERSON:  Actually there again

         16  there is little research on this, however, some of

         17  the research that is out there suggests that for

         18  example the risk factors or the way that you screen

         19  for diabetes, it might be a little different

         20  considering the Asian American, I should qualify by

         21  saying I'm not a physician or a provider so this is

         22  just from the research that I've --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Anything is

         24  more than I know at this point, so --

         25                 MS. EMERSON:  -- And also similar to
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          2  other immigrant groups, I think that you see a

          3  situation where people have immigrated to this

          4  country and the changes in diet and lifestyle have

          5  really impacted their ability to --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Is it an

          7  onset of, what is it adult onset of diabetes in

          8  children, or do you see it mainly in, if you know?

          9                 MS. EMERSON:  I'm sorry I don't know

         10  that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  That's all

         12  right.  Thank you.

         13                 MS. EMERSON:  Although we'd like to

         14  know so hopefully there will be more research.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Councilman Liu.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  I just wanted to

         17  thank you for coming down here on relatively short

         18  notice.  Thanks always to the Charles B. Wang Health

         19  Center.  I want to assure Council Member Foster that

         20  Asian Americans also eat food.  I'm just joking

         21  because our Chairman caught me eating a king- size

         22  Butterfinger on the way in.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  See and I was

         24  eating an apple.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  I asked Council
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          2  Member Liu what did you have for lunch, he said a

          3  king- size Butterfinger.  I said you're going to

          4  have that before a hearing on obesity and diabetes.

          5  I had and I promote for the record a product call

          6  Kashi, 4 grams of fiber, 6 grams of protein, only 1

          7  gram of sugar --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  You know that

          9  Kashi, you're going to have to get out of here soon.

         10    It keeps you regular.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  A very good

         12  product.  All natural, no preservative.  With that

         13  being said, there seems to be nobody else to

         14  testify, on that note, we will adjourn.  Happy

         15  Valentine's Day.  Get home safely.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 2:36 p.m.)
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